scM/M/11
Page 2

A. Adherence of further countries to the Agreement

5. The Chairman recalled that since the last regular session of the
Committee (28 October 1981) Egypt had signed the Agreement (subject to
ratification) on 28 December 1981. On 4 March 1982 Egypt had circulated a
declaration made in pursuance of Article 14:5 of the Agreement (SCM/16).

6. The representative of Canada said that if Egypt maintained no export
subsidy within the meaning of the Code, it did not seem to be necessary to
enter into a commitment. If, however, there were some subsidy practices,
they should be notified and the commitment should be to eliminate or reduce
them over a period of time. The representative of the United States said that
he considered the compensation programme with respect to cotton articles as a
subsidy which should be notified under Article XVI:1 and welcomed the Egyptian
commitment to reduce it within three years.

7. The Committee took note of the commitment by Egypt as reproduced in
SCM/16.

8. The representatives of the European Communities and Canada reserved their
rights to raise, in future and if necessary, some problems with respect to
this commitment.

9. The representative of Egypt said that his Government would abide by the
provisions of the Agreement and would fully co-operate with other Signatories
in the Committee.

10. The Chairman recalled that on 14 April 1982 Spain accepted the Agreement.
This acceptance was accompanied by a declaration which was reproduced in
document L/4914/Rev.5/Add.7. The Committee had before it a draft decision
concerning this declaration (SCM/W/32).

l11. The representative of Spain said that during the Tokyo Round his
authorities had shown a great interest in signing the Subsidies Code but at
that time there had been a problem with respect to a practice forbidden as an
export subsidy, namely reimbursement of cumulative indirect taxes on goods
that were not physically incorporated in the exported goods. The Spanish tax
system used indirect cumulative taxes and the exemption or remission of such
taxes, even if imposed on goods not physically incorporated in the exported
goods, was a normal practice. However last year a new law had been enacted in
Spain which constituted a framework for a tax reform and in the very near
future the value added tax system would be introduced. Consequently the
Spanish system would be entirely in conformity with the requirements of the
Code, in particular paragraph (h) of the Illustrative List. Introduction of
the new system would, however, require some time and a number of adaptations
would have to be made. For this reason Spain had to make a reservation
enabling it to gradually introduce all necessary reforms and complete the
whole process by 31 December 1984. He wanted to assure the Committee that
this deadline was the maximum time-limit involved and expressed the hope that
Spain would be able to withdraw its reservation much sooner.

12. Representatives of the United States, the European Communities, Korea,
India, Japan, Sweden on behalf of the Nordic countries, Australia, Austria,
Canada, Brazil, Chile, New Zealand, Switzerland, Yugoslavia, the
United Kingdom on behalf of Hong Kong and Austria welcomed the acceptance of




scM/M/11
Page 3

the Agreement by Spain and supported the draft decision contained in SCM/W/32.
The Committee adopted this decision (SCM/25) on the understanding that it
would not constitute a precedent for other cases which might arise in future.

B. Examination of national legislation and implementing regulations (SCM/1
and addenda)

13. The Chairman recalled that since the  last regular session of the
Committee the secretariat had circulated two communications concerning the
national legislations of New Zealand (SCM/1/Add.l5) and Chile (SCM/1/Add.16).

New Zealand (SCM/1/Add.l5)

14. The representative of the European Communities said that New Zealand had
notified a legislation which dated from 1966, and consequently the drafters of
this legislation could not have foreseen the rules of the Countervailing Duty
Code. This legislation did not contain adequate provisions, there was neither
definition or criteria for determination of injury, no definition of industry,
no definition of what a concession (subsidy) meant, there was nothing about
calculation of the amount of a subsidy, rules on retroactivity were
inconsistent with the Code, rules on the duration of provisional measures were
also inconsistent, there were no rules on procedures and conduct of
investigations, there was nothing on the possibility of a judicial review. He
urged the Government of New Zealand to have a close look at this legislation
because it required a complete redrafting in order to be aligned on the Code.

15. The representative of New Zealand said that there was some
misunderstanding as to administrative practice in New Zealand. The
New Zealand treaty-making power was with the executive and not the
legislative. Thus to ensure the conformity of domestic laws and regulations
with the provisions of the Code, it was not necessary to write the Code into
the domestic law. The only thing to be done was to ensure that the domestic
law did not restrict the Government in fulfilling its international
obligations. The domestic legislation was phrased in broader terms than the
relevant international obligatioms. The Government adopted, as the
administrative practice, the more specific procedures to which it was bound at
international level. 1In particular, as far as the question of injury was
concerned the Government, in exercising its national obligations, would have
regard to the Code. Furthermore the Government was bound to follow the
dispute settlement procedure of the Code. There was nothing in the domestic
legislation to restrict the Government in this regard.

16. The representative of the European Communities said that things were not
quite as easy as the representative of New Zealand seemed to imply. There was
a clear obligation under the Code for every Signatory to align its national
legislation with the provisions of the Code. It had not been done by
New Zealand. He attached great importance to the conformity of national
legislation with the Code because only such conformity gave the possibility of
judicial review of decisions taken by national authorities. Although certain
provisions of New Zealand's legislation were vague and one could interpret
them in a manner consistent with the Code it was not possible in all
cases. For example section 129:9 mentioned the possibility of extention of
provisional duties from three to six months, while the maximum allowed by the
Code was four months. There were more contradictions of this kind and
therefore the New Zealand Government should compare its present legislation
with the requirements of the Code and redraft the legislation accordingly.




RESTRICTED
SCM/M/11

GENERAL AGREEMENT ON i g
TARIFFS AND TRADE T

Committee on Subsidies and
Countervailing Measures

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 APRIL 1982

Chairman: Mr. M. Ikeda (Japan)

1. The Committee on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures met on
29 April 1982.

2, The Committee adopted the following agenda:
A. Adherence of further countries to the Agreement

B. Examination of national legislation and implementing regulations (SCM/1
and addenda)

Ci Notification of subsidies (L/5102 and addenda)

D. Reports on all preliminary or final countervailing duty actions
(scM/w/18, 20, 25, 26, 27, 29 and 30)

E. Semi-annual reports of countervailing duty actions taken within the
period 1 July 1981-31 December 1981 (SCM/15 and addenda)

F. Matter referred by India the Committee wunder Article 17:1 of the
Agreement (certain domestic procedures of the United States)

G. Other actions taken under the Agreement

H. Other business (Possible contributions to the Ministerial Meeting;
export credits)

3. The observer for Colombia said that a practice had developed in the
Committee to have meetings limited to the Signatories only. He was aware that
one of the reasons was that there was an increased number of dispute
settlement cases. However, there were also meetings which dealt with subjects
of general interest, as for example notifications under Article XVI:1 where
confidentiality was certainly not warranted. He expressed his hope that this
practice would be discontinued and that in future observers would be invited
to such meetings.

4. The Chairman said that sometimes it was difficult to draw the 1line
between confidential and non-confidential matters but efforts would be made to
limit the number of executive sessions of the Committee to the necessary
minimum.



SCM/M/11
Page 4

17. The representative of New Zealand said he would refer the comments to his
authorities. He nevertheless insisted that his Government's ability to comply
with international obligations was not restricted by the domestic legislation
and it would conduct itself in conformity with the Code. He also pointed out
that as far as the points raised related to the time factor, there was an
introductory paragraph to SCM/1/Add.l15 which indicated that the Government
would, if in future it took a countervailing duty action, apply the
time-limits of the Code.

Chile (SCM/1/Add.16)

18. The representative of the European Communities said that Article 13 of
the legislation provided for the possibility of retroative application of
countervailing duties in cases where there had been provisional measures.
There was no proviso in the text that in a case where the final countervailing
duty was higher than the provisional one this higher amount could not be
applied retroactively.

19. The representative of Chile recalled that the Committee had already
discussed the draft Chilean regulations and as a result of this discussion the
final version had been considerably improved. He wished to reaffirm that the
Chilean legislation was exactly the text of the Code, while the text before
the Committee was that of implementing regulations to guide competent
authorities if an investigation should be carried out. Referring to the
question put by the EC representative he confirmed that provisions of the Code
were applicable and if the final duty was higher than the provisional one then
the difference should not be collected.

General comments

20. The representative of Australia said that his delegation was very
concious of the fact that it had not notified its national legislation but
such notification would be made in the very near future. The representative
of Korea said that the Korean legislation and implementing decree had been
amended and entered into force on 1 January 1982. The appropriate
notification would be made in the very near future.

21. The Chairman reminded the Committee that some Signatories had not, as
yet, notified their legislation. He expressed his hope that appropriate
notifications would be submitted to the secretariat in time for the next
annual review in October 1982, In the meantime the Committee might wish to
revert to certain points concerning various legislations raised at previous
meetings. At any rate this item should be maintained on the agenda in order
to allow the Signatories to revert to particular aspects of some legislations
at a later stage or in the light of their practical implementations. It was

so agreed.
C. Notification of subsidies (L/5102 and addenda)

22. The Chairman recalled briefly the history of the question before the
Committee. The very unsatisfactory status of  notifications under
Article XVI:1 had been discussed in the Committee at practically each one of
its meetings. At its April 1981 meeting the Committee had agreed that
Signatories should submit their responses to L/5102 before the October 1981
meeting and that the Committee should undertake an examination of the



SCM/M/11
Page 5

questionnaire on subsidies as well as of qualitative aspects of responses to
it at this meeting (SCM/M/6, paragraph 15). On 21 September 1981 the Acting
Chairman of the Committee had circulated an Aide-Mémoire (SCM/8) to remind the
Signatories of the decisions previously taken by the Committee with regard to
notifications of subsidies and to appeal urgently to the Signatories to make
every effort to ensure that notifications, as complete as possible, be
submitted sufficiently in advance to make possible a valid examination by the
Committee at 1its October 1981 meeting. At its October 1981 meeting the
Committee had not been able to have any meaningful discussion of this question
because only four Signatories had submitted their notifications and these
notifications had provided practically no details on the situation in the
industrial sector. In the light of this the Chairman had pointed out that if
the Committee did not want to lose its credibility it should seriously reflect
on how to remedy the situation. He had also appealed again to the Signatories
to make every effort to ensure that notifications as complete as possible be
submitted by all Signatories without further delay. Consequently, the
Committee had agreed that Signatories which had not already done so should
submit their full notifications by the end of 1981. Signatories who
considered that they did not grant subsidies in the sense of Article XVI:l
should notify this. Following this procedure the Committee should have a
discussion on the content of notifications (SCM/M/9, paragraph 21).

23. On 3 March 1982 the Committee had had a special meeting to examine the
status of notifications. By that date, and in fact the situation had remained
practically unchanged since, the following Signatories had made notifications
under Article XVI:1. Australia, Austria, Canada, Chile, Finland, Hong Kong,
Japan, Luxembourg, Norway, Sweden, Switzerland, United States and the European
Communities. Notifications from other Signatories were still, despite
repeated appeals, pending. They were still pending despite the fact that the
Committee had invited Signatories to make every effort to present or complete
their notifications sufficiently early so that at its April meeting the
Committee could examine them and reflect on the possible modifications to the
questionnaire on subsidies. As to the improvement of notifications the only
positive development in this field were complementary notifications of
industrial subsidies submitted by Finland (L/5102/Add.3/Suppl.l) and the
European Communities (L/5102/Add.6/Suppl.l).

24. At the 3 March 1982 meeting some general problems had been raised. In
his summing-up the Chairman had concluded that in accordance with the
statement by the Chairman of the XIIIth Session of the CONTRACTING PARTIES all
Signatories should furnish information on the subsidies they applied even if
in their view those subsidies were not within the purview of Article XVI:l.
He also said that the Code had not changed this interpretation. The need for
greater transparency had also been generally recognized. Although some
delegations had misgivings about the incrimination effect of notificatioms, it
was recognized that such misgivings were not justified and consequently they
should not prevent Signatories from fulfilling their obligations. Furthermore
it had been pointed out that, in certain cases, the questionnaire involved
some practical problems and that the shortcomings of the questionnaire should
be remedied at an appropriate moment. For the time being the most reasonable
approach seemed to be to show some flexibility as to the use of the
questionnaire, and as to replies to its second part in particular. In the
discussion certain contradictions had emerged. Some delegations had stated
that notifications were not necessary because transparency had already been



SCM/M/11
Page 6

assured through official publications. That conclusion was unacceptable:
when a measure was published at national level it was contradictory to claim
that notification at multilateral level was superfluous or even impossible.
Secondly, reference had been made to the possibility under the Code of
requesting and obtaining additional information on subsidies that could make
notifications unnecessary. In that connexion the Chairman drew the
Committee's attention to the risks inherent in any bilateralization of
information which would not contribute to the transparency sought. Lastly,
the problem of subjectivity of notifications had been underlined. In that
connexion the Committee should start from the premise that a determination as
to whether or not a measure was within the purview of Article XVI:1 should not
be made unilaterally, and in case of doubt one should opt for notifying rather
than for refraining from doing so.

25. The representative of New Zealand expressed his regret that his
delegation had not submitted a notification of subsidies. He promised that
such a notification would be submitted in the very near future.

26. The representative of the European Communities made a statement which has
been circulated in SCM/23.

27. The representative of Pakistan endorsed the Chairman's appeal for a
better performance in the notification of subsidies. He said that the delay
in Pakistan's notification was entirely due to administrative reasons and
scarce resources. He added that most of the subsidies were notified in the
official documents or journals and would be compiled in the form of a booklet.
Thus there was some transparency and trading partners who felt affected by
measures and incentives applied by Pakistan had the possibility of obtaining
all the necessary information both directly and through the procedures of
Article 7 of the Code. This would not, however, prevent his Government from
notifying in accordance with Article XVI:l.

28. The representative of Chile thanked the Chairman for his introduction to
the question which had put the problems in the right perspective. He was
concerned that the situation, in terms of the status of notifications, had not
changed very much since the beginning of the year. One of the ways of opening
the discussion would be to hear the Signatories which had not fulfilled their
obligations to notify to explain the reasons why. He noted with pleasure the
statement ¢of the representative of Pakistan that all efforts were being made
to submit a notification shortly. Referring to the statement by the
representative of the European Communities, he said that his concerns were
shared by the Chilean delegation. For example the questionnaire on subsidies
might be inadequate in the current situation and in the light of the needs of
economic life and therefore the Committee should reflect on the possibility of
revising the questionnaire. Such an exercise should take account of the need
for transparency but should also result in certain flexibility and realism.
He further said that it would be very difficult to review individual
notifications at this meeting and suggested that a special meeting be held to
deal with this matter. At that time the Committee should have notificatioms
from all Signatories and it could decide on the questions raised by the EC
representative regarding transparency, scope of the questionnaire,
flexibility, etc.

29. The representative of the United States said that the Chairman's remarks
deserved the special attention of the Committee and shared his hope that all
Signatories would comply with their obligations under Article XVI:1. He noted




SCM/M/11
Page 7

the absence of notifications from several Signatories, in particular from
Brazil, India, Korea, Uruguay and New Zealand, and invited them to explain why
they had not notified their subsidies. Referring to the statement by the
representative of the European Communities he said that with regard to a
general point about the meaning of Article XVI:1 he considered that this
Article's language was unambiguous and it provided that any subsidy, including
~any form of price support which directly or indirectly affected imports or
exports, should be notified in writing. The mere fact that such subsidies or
programmes were maintained did not imply that they were in violation of the
Code or that a countermeasure should be taken against them. There was nothing
in Article XVI:1 that incriminated any party for it having notified something;
its purpose was to ensure that the practices of all Signatories were
transparent. With regard to the suggestion that there were certain types of
subsidies which did not need to be notified he thought that although there was
a certain degree of subjectivity, Signatories should be guided by common sense
in deciding what should be notified. 1In particular he could not agree with
the suggestion that subsidies which were not countervailable did not need to
be notified.

30. The representative of Canada agreed with the introductory remarks of the
Chairman. He considered very helpful the fact that recently some Signatories
had notified their subsidies in the industrial sector. He wished to stress
that the obligation wunder Article XVI:1 was still the central one.
Consequently shifting the burden of notifications through the procedures of
Article 7:3 on other Signatories should be avoided. He expressed his concern
about the unsatisfactory status of notifications by the majority of the
contracting parties and some of the Signatories. He further said that in the
process of examining notifications it would be wuseful to look at the
questionnaire to see whether it was still serving the purpose for which it had
been designed. On the one hand this Committee should not be overloaded with
too many papers and this should be taken into account in new guidelines on
notifications. On the other hand it would be wrong to assume, on the basis of
some examples, such as subsidies in the steel sector, that there was
sufficient transparency because of national publications. There were many
sectors where this transparency was far from sufficient and therefore the fact
that certain national sources of information existed should not guide the
Committee in its considerations. He believed that the Committee should find
an objective and flexible approach to the question.

31. The representative of India said that his authorities were in the process
of preparing a notification under Article XVI:1l. There were, however, some
problems because it was difficult, on the basis of existing notifications and
statements by some Signatories, to determine what practices should be
notified. Only recently major trading countries had given more ample
information of their subsidy programmes and this would certainly help a lot in
preparing the Indian notification.

32. The representative of Switzerland endorsed the Chairman's introductory
remarks and noted that some progress had been made as several Signatories had
completed previous notifications. He said that in the field of subsidies it
was very important to know what was going on in other countries, particularly
as different forms of aids and subsidies had increased substantially in the
course of the last twenty years. The conclusion to be drawn from this.
situation was that the need for transparency was even greater now than it had
been at the time when subsidies played a much less important role. He pointed






